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Company No.
734181 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors hereby submit their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group
and Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the financial year and during the period from the end of the financial year
to the date of the report are:

Tan Sri Rafidah Aziz

Datuk Kamarudin Bin Meranun

Tan Sri Dr. Anthony Francis Fernandes
Lim Kian Onn

Dato’ Fam Lee Ee

Tan Sri Asmat Bin Kamaludin

Dato’ Yusli Bin Mohamed Yusoff

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is that of providing long haul air transportation services. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are described in Note 16 to the financial statements. There was
no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Group Company
RM'000 RM'000

Net profit for the financial year 210,314 210,444

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

All material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year are shown in the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES

There was no issuance of shares and debentures during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company is a
party, being arrangements with the object or objects of enabling Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other bady
corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a
benefit {other than the benefits shown under Directors’ Remuneration) by reason of a contract made by
the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a
company in which he has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed in Note 5 and Note 30 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings required to be kept under Section 59 of the
Companies Act, 2016, none of the Directors who held office at the end of the financial year held any
shares or debentures in the Company or its subsidiaries or its holding company or subsidiaries of the

holding company during the financial year except as follows:

Number of ordinary shares

Acquired/ Disposed/
1.1.2016 Transferred Transferred 31.12.2016

Direct interests in the Company
Datuk Kamarudin Bin Meranun 337,702,739 - - 332,702,739
Tan Sri Dr. Anthony Francis

Fernandes 87,303,728 - - 87,303,728
Lim Kian Onn 196,783,356 - {196,783,356) -
Tan Sri Rafidah Aziz 175,000 - - 175,000
Tan Sri Asmat Bin Kamaludin 175,000 122,400 - 297,400
Dato’ Yusli Bin Mohamed Yusoff 200,000 - - 200,000
Indirect interests in the Company
Datuk Kamarudin Bin Meranun* 1,310,331,376 - (146,728,082 1,163,602,394
Tan Sri Dr. Anthony Francis

Fernandes* 1,310,331,376 - (146,728,282) 1,163,602,394
Lim Kian Onn™ 1,050,000 196,783,356 - 197,833,356
Tan Sri Rafidah Aziz*** 100,000 - - 100,000
Tan Sri Asmat Bin Kamaludin**** - 40,000 - 40,000

*  Deemed interest by virtue of their shareholding interests in AirAsia Berhad and Tune Group Sdn
Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act, 20186,

** Pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of the Companies Act, 2018, the interests of spouse and children of
Lim Kian Onn in the shares of the Company shall also be treated as the interest of Lim Kian Onn.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES (CONTINUED)

*** Pursuant to Section 59(11}(c} of the Companies Act, 2016, the interest of spouse {deceased) of
Tan Sri Rafidah Aziz in the shares of the Company shall also be treated as the interest of Tan Sri
Rafidah Aziz.

**** Pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of the Companies Act, 2016, the interests of spouse and children
of Tan Sri Asmat Bin Kamaludin in the shares of the Company shall also be treated as the interest
of Tan Sri Asmat Bin Kamaludin.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the financial year ended 31

December 2018.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company had implemented an Employees’ Share Option Scheme ("ES0S"} o eligible employees
of the Group. The tenure of the ESQOS shall be five (5) years with an option to extend for a further five
(5) years, subject to a maximum duration of ten (10) years.

The salient features of the ESOS are disclosed in Note 27 of the financial statements.

The number of options granted under ESOS during the financial year and the number of options
outstanding at the end of the financial year are as follows:

At At
Types of grant 1.1.2016 Exercised Forfeited 31.12.2016
First grant on 1.7.2013
- Ordinary shares 3,976,148 - (205,485) 3,770,663

None of the Directors were granted any options as they are not eligible to participate in the ESOS
under the By-Law of the Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Before the financial statements of the Group and the Company were prepared, the Directors took
reasonable steps:

(@)

(b)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and
the making of allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts
had been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

to ensure that any current assets, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of
husiness including the values of current assets as shown in the accounting records of the
Group and Company had been written down to an amount which the current assets might be
expected so to realise.

At the date of this repon, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(a)

(b)

()

which would render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for
doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and Company inadequate to any
substantial extent; or

which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the
Group and Company misleading; or

which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group and Company misleading or inappropriate.

No contingent or other liahility has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceahble within the
period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will
or may affect the ability of the Group or Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(a)

(b)

any charge on the assets of the Group and Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liability of any other person; or

any contingent liahility of the Group and Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with

in this report or the financial statements which would render any amount stated in the financial

statements misleading.

In the opinion of the Directors:

(@) except as disclosed in the financial statements, the results of the Group's and Company's
operations during the financial year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction
or event of a material and unusual nature; and

(b) there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this
report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect

substantially the results of the operations of the Group and Company for the financial year in
which this report is made.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements. The audit reports on the
financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain qualification or adverse comment made
under Fifth Schedule Part!(8) of Companies Act, 2016. The subsidiaries do not hold any shares in
the holding company or other related corporations.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Details of auditors' remuneration are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

AUDITCRS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017. Signed on behalf of the
Board of Directors:

\p

| RAFIDAH AZ DATUK KAMARUDIN BIN MERANUN
DIRECTOR -~ DIRECTOR

?

Kuala Lumpur
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INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note

Revenue 4
Operating expenses
- Staff costs 5
- Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
- Aircraft fuel expenses
- Maintenance and overhau!
- User charges
- Aircraft operating lease

expenses
- Other operating expenses 4]
Other income 7
Operating profit/(loss)
Finance income 9
Finance costs 9
Net operating profit/(loss)
Foreign exchange losses 9

Share of results of an associate 17
Share of results of a joint venture 18
Other gains/{losses) 8

Profit/{Loss) before taxation

Taxation
- Current taxation 10
- Deferred taxation 10

Net profit/(loss) for the financial year

Net profit/{loss) for the financial year
attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Company
- Non-controlliing interests

Earning/(Loss) per share (sen)
- Basic 11
- Diluted 11

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
4,006,534 3,062,553 4,005,025 3,061,192
(369,594} (315,821) (363,580) (311,501)
(113,531) (144,807) (113,531) {144,807)
(1,116,110} {1,020,881) (1,116,110) (1,020,881)
(619,331) (496,814) (619,331) {496,814)
(461,685) {395,051) (461,685) {(395,051)
(846,004) (708,058) (846,004) (708,058)
(251,336) {137,445) (256,464) {141,013)
56,000 116,881 56,772 116,381
284,943 (37,443) 285,092 (38,052)
24,775 19,812 24,775 19,812
(49,874) (84,131) (49,874) {(84,131)
259,844 (101,762) 259,993 (102,371)
(35,489) . {299,562) (35,489) (299,562)
- (37,566) - -
35,738 (7,585) 35,738 (61,473)
260,093 (446,475) 260,242 (463,406)
188 (169) 169 (169)
(49,967) 97,028 (49,967) 97,028
(49,779) 96,859 {49,798) 96,859
210,314 (349,6186) 210,444 (366,547)
210,314 (349,618)
210,314 {(349,616)
5.1 (10.4)
5.1 (10.4)
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RWM000 RM'C00 RM000
Net profit/(loss) for the financial year 210,314 {349,616) 210,444 (366,547)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
[tems that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges 214,212 (114,108) 214,212 (114,108)
Foreign currency translation
differences 68 231 - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the financial year, net of tax 214,280 (113,877) 214,212 (114,108)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the financial year 424,594 (463,493) 424,656 (480,655)

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Company 424,594 (463,493)
- Non-controlling interests - -

424,594 (463,493)




Company No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysta)

BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Group Company
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RW000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 12 1,568,493 1,677,613 1,568,493 1,677,613
Deferred tax assets 13 492,854 542,821 492,854 542,821
Depaosits on aircraft purchases 14 136,791 243,601 136,791 243,601
Other deposits and prepayments 15 1,107,800 903,374 1,107,800 903,374
Investments in subsidiaries 16 - - * *
Investment in an associate 17 - - 20,018 20,018
Investment.in a joint venture 18 - - - -

3,305,938 3,367,409 3,325,956 3,387,427

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 20 14,151 3,985 14,151 3,985
Receivables and prepayments 21 285,084 282,463 285,338 282,403
Amounts due from related parties 22 51,561 30,103 51,561 29,330
Amount due from a joint venture 22 112,816 55,570 112,816 55,570
Amount due from an associate 22 69,590 26,150 - -
Amount due from a subsidiary 22 - - 69,5690 26,150
Derivative financial instruments 19 134,735 - 134,735 -
Tax recoverabie 1,613 712 1,459 579
Deposits, cash and bank balances 23 422,021 310,789 420,405 310,274
1,091,571 709,772 1,090,055 708,291
Non-current asset held for sale 24 82,781 105,116 92,781 105,116

1,184,352 814,888 1,182,836 813,407

LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES

Sales in advance 715,207 671,510 715,207 671,510
Derivative financial instruments 19 - 115,215 - 115,215
Trade and other payables 25 878,246 849,075 877,505 848,279
Amounts due to related parties 22 25,256 45,668 25,879 45,668
Amounts due to subsidiaries 22 - - 1,488 2,263
Borrowings 26 208,238 319,477 208,238 319,477

1,826,947 2,000,945 1,828,317 2,002,412

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (642,595) (1,186,057) (645,481) (1,189,005)




GCompany No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings
Other payables and accruals

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital

Share premium

Warrant reserve

Currency translation reserve
Accumulated losses

Other reserves

Shareholders’ equity

* Less than RM1,000

27

28

Group Company
2016 2015 2018 2015
BRM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
952,088 1,108,610 952,088 1,109,610
654,370 439,935 654,370 439,935
1,606,458 1,549,545 1,606,458 1,549,545
1,056,885 631,807 1 ,074,01'7 648,877
622,222 622,222 622,222 622,222
911,821 911,821 911,821 911,821
62,222 62,222 62,222 62,222
195 127 - -
(648,715) (859,029) {631,388) (841,832)
109,140 (105,556) 109,140 (105,556)
631,807 1,074,017 648,877

1,056,885
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AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'C00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) hefore taxation 260,083 (446,475) 260,242 (463,4086)
Adjustments:
Property, plant and equipment
- Depreciation 113,531 144,807 113,531 144,807
- Write off 15,189 7,752 15,189 7,752
Non-current assets held for sale
- Write off 12,335 - 12,335 -
Gain on disposal - (32,541) - (32,541)
Impairment of trade and other receivables 11,585 - 11,585 -
Iimpairment of investment in a joint venture - - - 53,888
Finance cost 40,260 75,076 40,260 75,078
Discounting effect of deposits 9,614 9,055 9,614 9,055
interest income (5,193) (3,849) (5,193) (3,849)
Discounting/accretion of interest on
deposits (19,582) {15,963) (19,582) (15,963)
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative
financial instrumenis {35,738) {101,886) {35,738) {101,886)
Fair value gain on shareholders’
benefits scheme (2,944) - {2,944) -
Share option expense 484 559 484 559
Share of results of a joint venture - 37,566 - -
Net unrealised foreign exchange
losses 16,435 255,805 16,083 255,118
416,069 {70,094) 415,866 (71,390)
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (10,166) {(2,623) (10,166) (2,623)
Receivables, prepayments and
other deposits (17,398) (141,004} (17,647) (141,017)
Related parties balances (129,333) (27,033) {129,970) {25,671)
Trade and other payables 81,201 122,407 81,257 122,395
Sales in advance 43,697 173,655 43,697 173,655
Cash generated from operations 384,070 55,308 383,037 55,349
Interest paid (47,815} (72,483) (47,815) (72,483)
interest received 5,193 3,745 5193 3,745
Tax recovered - 1,001 - 1,001
Tax paid ' (712) (817) (712) (711)
Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities 340,736 (13,246) 339,703 (13,099)

14
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AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

Group Company
Note 016 2015 2016 2015
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, plant and equipment
- Additions 12 (30,420) {37.337) (30,420) (37,337)
Proceeds from disposal of aircraft

and engine pursuant to sales

and leaseback arrangement 10,408 69,178 10,408 69,178
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 412 - 412 -
Refund/{Placement) of deposits

onh aircraft purchases 508 265,483 508 265,483
Net cash (used in)/generated from

investing activities {19,092) 287,324 (19,092) 297,324
CASH FLOWS FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from allotment of shares - 391,111 - 391,111
Proceeds from borrowings - 392,100 - 392,100
Repayments of borrowings (212,553} (890,779) (212,553} (880,779)
Deposits pledged as securitles 18,827 (6,181) 18,827 (6,181)
Net cash used in financing activities (193,726) (113,749) (193,7286) (113,749)

NET INCREASE FOR THE

FINANCIAL YEAR 127,918 170,329 126,885 170,476
CURRENCY TRANSLATION
DIFFERENCES 2,141 7,081 2,073 6,850

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE
FINANGIAL YEAR 252,347 74,937 251,832 74,506

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR - 28 382,406 252,347 380,790 251,832

16
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is that of providing long haul air transportation services. The
principal activities of the subsidiary companies are described in Note 16 to the financia! statements.

There was no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

The address of the registered office of the Company is as follows:

B-13-15, Level 13

Menara Prima Tower B

Jalan PJU1/39, Dataran Prima
47301 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan

The address of the principal place of business of the Group and Company is as follows:

RedQ, Jalan Pekeliling 5

Lapangan Terbang Antarabangsa Kuala Lumpur (KLIA2)
64000 KLIA

Selangor Darul Ehsan

The financial statements have been approved for issue in accardance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors on 28 March 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Unless otherwise stated, the following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing
with items that are considered materia! in relation to the financial statements:

(a)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group and Company have been prepared in accordance with
the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards {(“MFRS"}, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
disclosed in this summary of significant accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
iiabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported financial
year. It also requires Directors to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the
Group's and Company’s accounting policies. Although these estimates and judgment are
based on the Directors’ best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may
differ. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3
to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group and the Company's current
liabilities exceeded their current assets by RM642,595,000 (2015: RM1,186,057,000) and
RM&45,481,000 (2015: RM1,189,005,000) respectively.

The Directors are of the view that the Group and the Company will have sufficient cash flows
for the next twelve months from the reporting date to meet their cash flow requirements. The
Directors believe that the Group and the Company are able to realise their assets and
discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business and that the financia! position will
be improved through future operating profits and cash flows. Thus, the Directors believe that
it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements of the Group and the Company on a going
concern basis.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2016:

. Amendments to MFRS 11 “Joint arrangements’ - Accounting for acquisition of interests
in joint operations

. Amendments to MFRS 101 '‘Presentation of financial statements’ - Disclosure initiative

. Amendments to MFRS 127 “Equity method in separate financial statements”

. Amendments to MFRS 10, 12 & 128 “Investment entities — Applying the cansolidation
exception”

. Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the current period or any prior
period and is not likely to affect future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —- 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Standards and amendments that have been issued but not vet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective
for financial year beginning after 1 January 2017. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect an the consolidated financial statements of the Group, except the following
set out below:

Amendments to MFRS 107 ‘Statement of Cash Flows — Disclosure Initiative’ (effective
from 1 January 2017) introduce an additional disclosure on changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities.

Amendments to MFRS 112 ‘Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses’ (effective from 1 January 2017) clarify the requirements for
recognising deferred tax assets on unrealised losses arising from deductible
temporary difference on asset carried at fair value.

In addition, in evaluating whether an entity will have sufficient taxable profits in future
periods against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised, the
amendments require an entity to compare the deductible temporary differences with
future taxable profits that excludes tax deductions resulting from the revetsal of those
temporary differences.

The amendments shall be applied retrospectively.

IC Interpretation 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’
(effective from 1 January 2018) applies when an entity recognises a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. MFRS 121 requires an entity to use the exchange rate at the ‘date of
the transaction’ to record foreign currency transactions.

IC Interpretation 22 provides guidance how to determine ‘the date of transaction’
when a single payment/receipt is made, as well as for situations where multiple
payments/receipts are made.

The date of transaction is the date when the payment or receipt of advance
consideration gives rise to the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability when the
entity is no longer exposed to foreign exchange risk.

If there are muliiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity should determine the
date of the transaction for each payment or receipt.

An entity has the option to apply IC Interpretation 22 retrospectively or prospectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED})

{c} Standards and amendments that have been issued but not yet effective {continued)

MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective from 1 January 2018) will replace MFRS
139 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement",

MFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model in MFRS 139 and
establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised
cost, fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive
income ("OCI"). The basis of classification depends on the entity's business model
and the cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Invesiments in equity
instruments are always measured at fair value through profit or loss with an
irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in OCI (provided the
instrument is not held for trading). A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost
only if the entity is holding if to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows
represent principal and interest.

For liabllities, the standard retains most of the MFRS 139 requirements. These include
amortised cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of embedded
derivatives. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for
financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless
this creates an accounting mismatch.

MFRS 9 introduces an expected credit loss model on impairment that replaces the
incurred loss impairment model used in MFRS 139. The expected credit loss model
is forward-locking and eliminates the need for a trigger event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.

19



Company No.

734161

K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Standards and amendments that have been issued but not yet effective {continued)

MFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective from 1 January 2018)
replaces MFRS 118 ‘Revenue’ and MFRS 111 ‘Construction contracts’ and related
interpretations. The core principle in MFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of goods or services, i.e.
when the customer has the ability to direct the use of and obtain the benefits from the
goods or services.

A new five-step process is applied before revenue can be recognised:

o Identify contracts with customers

o Identify the separate performance obligations

o Determine the transaction price of the contract;

o Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations;
and

o Recognise the revenus as each periormance obligation is satisfied.

Key provisions of the new standard are as follows:

o Any bundled goods or services that are distinct must be separately recognised,
and any discounts or rebates on the contract price must generally be allocated
to the separate elements.

o It the consideration varies (such as for incentives, rebates, performance fees,
royalties, success of an outcome etc), minimum amounts of revenue must be
recognised if they are not at significant risk of reversal.

o The point at which revenue is able to be recognised may shift: some revenue
which is currently recognised at a point in time at the end of a contract may have
to be recognised over the contract term and vice versa.

o There are new specific rules on licenses, warranties, non-refundable upfront
fees, and consignment arrangements, to name a few.

o As with any new standard, there are aiso increased disclosures.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(©) Standards and amendments that have been issued but not yet effective {(continued}

MFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective from 1 January 2019) supersedes MFRS 117 'Leases’
and the related interpretations.

Under MFRS 18, a lease is a contract {or part of a contract) that conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

MFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases by the lessee as either finance leases
(on balance sheet) or operating leases (off balance sheet). MFRS 16 requires a
lessee to recognise a “right-of-use” of the underlying asset and a lease liability
reflecting future lease payments for most leases.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated in accordance with the principle in MFRS 116
‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and the lease liability is accreted over time with
interest expense recognised in the income statement.

For lessors, MFRS 16 retains most of the requirements in MFRS 117. Lessors
continue to classify all leases as sither operating leases or finance leases and account
for them differently.

{d) Basis of consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entittes {including structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acaquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities Incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liahility resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’'s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of

the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.
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(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(M

(if)

Subsidiaries {continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with MFRS 139 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recoghised as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchass, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Where
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investment in
associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

if the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds ils interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
If the: associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resures recognising its share
of those profits only after its share of profits equals the share of losses not recognised.
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(d)

Basis of consolidation {continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Associates {continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of
results of associates’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to
the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising from investments in associates are recognised in
profit or loss.

Joint arrangemenis

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which there is contractually agreed sharing
of contro! by the Group with one or more patrties, where decisions about the relevant
activities relating to the joint arrangement require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control. The classification of a joint arrangement as a joint operation or a joint
venture depends upon the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the joint venturers have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the joint
operators have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement.

The Group’s interest in a joint venture is accounted for in the financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures. If the joint venture
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of profits equals the share of losses not recognised. Where an
entity loses joint control over a joint venture but retains significant influence, the
Group does not re-measure its continued ownership interest at fair value.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the exient of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially
recognised includes its purchase price and any cost that is directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capabie of operating in the manner
intended by management. Costs also include borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (refer to accounting policy
Note 2(q) on borrowing costs).

Where significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts in the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment as a replacement when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the parts will flow to the Group and the cost of the parts can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as expenses In profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Significant parts of an item of property, plant and property are depreciated separately over
their estimated useful lives in accordance with the principlte in MFRS 116 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. Depreciation is caleulated using the straight-line method to write-off the cost of
the assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

The useful lives for this purpose are as follows:

Aircraft
- engines and airframe excluding service potential 25 years
- service potential of engines and airframe 6 or 12 years
Aircraft spares 10 years
Aircraft fixtures and fittings Useful life of aircraft or remaining lease
term of aircraft, whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 5 years

Service potential of 6 years represents the period over which the expected cost of the first
major aircraft engine overhaul is depreciated. Subsequent to the engine overhaul, the
actual cost incurred is capitalised and depreciated over the subsequent 6 years.

Certain elements of the cost of an airframe are attributed on acquisition to 6 years interval
check or 12 years interval check, reflecting its maintenance conditions. This cost is amortised
over the shorter of the period to the next scheduled heavy maintenance or the remaining life
of the aircratft.

Assets not yet in operation are stated at cost and are not depreciated until the assets are
ready for their intended use. Useful lives of assets are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate,
at the balance sheet date.
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(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Residual values, where applicable, are reviewed annually against prevailing market values at
the balance sheet date for equivalent aged assets, and depreciation rates are adjusted
accordingly on a prospective basis. For the current financial year ended 31 December 2018,
the estimated residual value for aircraft airframes and engines is 10% of their cost (2015: 10%
of their cost).

An element of the cost of an acquired aircraft is attributed on acquisition to its service potential,
reflecting the maintenance condition of its engines and airframe. This cost, which can equate
to a substantial element of the total aircraft cost, is amortised over the shorter of the period to
the next checks or the remaining life of the aircraft,

The costs of upgrades to leased assels are capitalised and amortised over the shorter of the
expected usefut life of the upgrades or the remaining life of the aircratft.

Deposits on aircraft purchase are included as part of the cost of the aircraft and are
depreciated from the date that the aircraft is ready for its intended use.

At each balance sheaet date, the Group and Company assess whether there is any indication
of impairment. If such an indication exists, an analysis is performed to assess whether the
carrying amount of the asset is fully recoverable. A write down is mads if the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount. See accounting policy Note 2(h} on impairment of non-
financial assets.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts
and are included in the income statements.

Non-current assets held-for-sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale if their carrying amouni will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale
is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
henefits, financial assets and investment property that are carried at fair value and contractual
rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement,

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised. A gain or loss not previousiy recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset is recognised at the date of derecogniticn.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale,
Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held
for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as
held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the statement of financial
position. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from other liahilities in the statement of financial position.
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(9)

(h)

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Where an indication
of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount (see Note 2{h)).

On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, joint veniures and associates, the difference
between disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the investments are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less cost to sell and value-in-use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal at each reporting date.

Any impairment loss is charged to profit or loss unless it reverses a previous revaluation in
which case it is charged to the revaluation surplus, Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. In respect of other assets, any subsequent increase in recoverable amount is
recognised in profit or loss unless it reverses an impairment loss on a revalued asset in which
case it is taken {o revaluation surplus.

Maintenance and overhaul
Owned aircraft

The accounting for the cost of major airframe and certain engine maintenance checks for own
aircraft is described in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (see Note 2(e}).

Leased aircraft

Where the Group and Company have a commitment to maintain aircraft held under operating
leases, a provision is made during the lease term for the rectification obligations contained
within the lease agreements. The provisions are based on estimated future costs of major
airframe, certain engine maintenance checks and cone-off costs incurred at the end of the
lease hy making appropriate charges to the income statements calculated by reference to the
number of hours or cycles operated during the financial year,

26



Company No.

734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD
(Incorpeorated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

(0

Leases

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment, or
series of payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group and Company assume
substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement dates of the respective leases at the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments at the date of inception. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a periodic constant rate of interest on the balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental cobligations, net of finance charges, are included in
payables. The interest element of the finance charge is charged to the income statements
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging finance leases are added
fo the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised as an expense in profit or loss
over the lease term on the same basis as the lease expense.

Property, plant and eguipment acquired under finance lease contracts are depreciated over
the estimated useful life of the asset, in accordance with the annual rates stated in Note 2{e}
above. Where there is no reasonable certainty that the ownership will be transferred to the
Group and Company, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful
life.

Operating leases

Leases of assets where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statements on a straight-
line basis over the lease period.

Assets leased out by the Group and Company under operating leases are included in
property, plant and equipment in the balance sheets. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned property, plant and equipment.
Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight line basis
over the lease term.
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()

(k)

Leases (continued)

Sale and leaseback transactions

When a sale and leaseback results in a finance lease, any gain on the sale is deferred and
recognised as income over the lease term. Any loss on the sale is immediately recognised as
an impairment loss when the sale occurs.

If the leaseback is classified as an operating lease, then any gain is recognised immediately
if the sale and leaseback terms are demonstrably at fair value. Otherwise, the sale and
leaseback are accounted for as follows:

If the sale price is below fair value then the gain or loss is recognised immediately other than
to the extent that a loss is compensated for by future rentals at below-market price, then the
loss is deferred and amertised over the period that the asset is expected to be used.

If the sale price is above fair value, then any gain is deferred and amortised over the useful
life of the asset.

li the fair value of the asset is less than the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the
transaction, then that difference is recognised immediately as a loss on the sale.

Inventaries

Inventories comprising consumables used internally for repairs and maintenance and in-flight
merchandise, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and comprises the purchase price and
incidentals incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,

less all estimated costs to completion and applicable variable selling expenses. In arriving at
net realisable value, due allowance is made for all damaged, obsolete and slow-moving items.
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(0

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and the nature of the item being hedged, Derivatives
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are classified as held for irading and accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(w). The Group designates certain
derivatives as hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).

The Group and Company document at the inception of the transaction the relationship
between hedging insiruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives
and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group and Company also
document their assessment, both at hedge inception and on an engoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in
Note 19 to the financial statements. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as
a non-current asset or liability when the remaining hedged item is more than 12 months, and
as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12
months.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion Is recognised immediately in the income statements.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statements in the periods when
the hedged item affects prefit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes
place). The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable
rate borrowings is recognised in the income statements and presented separately after net
operating profit.

When the forecast transagction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
(for example, inventory or property, plant and equipment), the gains and losses previously
deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the
cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ullimately recognised in the cost of goods sold in
the case of inventory or in depreciaticon in the case of property, plant and equipment.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss.
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement within ‘other
gains/(losses) and *foreign exchange losses'.
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(m)

(n)

{0)

(p)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if lcnger), they are classified as current assets.
Otherwise, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand, bank balances, demand deposits, bank overdrafts and other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
cash flows. In the balance sheets, banks overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

Deposits held as pledged securities for term loans granted are not included as cash and cash
equivalents.

Provision
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.
Share capital
{i) Classification
Ordinary shares with discretionary dividends are classified as equity. Other shares
are classified as equity and/or liability according to the economic substance of the
particular instrument.

(i) Share issue costs

Incremental external costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(iii) Dividends to shareholders of the Company
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared. A
dividend declared after the end of the reporting period, but before the financial

statements are authorised for issue, is not recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

30



Company No.

734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carrled at amortised cost; any difference between initial recognised amount
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
caplitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the factlity will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the drawdown occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Interest, dividends, losses and gains relating to a financial instrument, or a component part,
classified as a liability is reported within finance cost in the income statements,

Borrowings are classified as current llabilities unless the Group and Company have an

unconditional right to defer settlement of the lfability for at least twelve months after the
balance sheet date.
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(r)

Current and deferred income taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Group’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. This liability is
measured using the single best estimate of the most likely outcome.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the amounts atfributed to assets and liabilities for tax purposes and their carrying
amounis in the financial staiemenis. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a tfransaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits (including tax incentives) can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
differences shall not be recognised.

Deferred and income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a egally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.
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(s)

Employee benefits
(i) Short term e'mployee benefits

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the financial year in which the associated services are
rendered by the employees of the Group and Company.

(ii) Defined contribution plan

The Group’s and Company's contributions to the Employees’ Provident Fund are
charged to the income statement in the period to which they relate. Once the
contributions have been paid, the Group and Company have no further payment
obligations. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available,

Revenue recognition

Revenue from scheduled passenger flights is recognised upon the rendering of transportation
services net of discounts. The revenue of seats sold for which services have not been
rendered is included in current liabilities as sales in advance.

Revenue from charter flights is recognised upon the rendering of transportation services.

Fuel surcharge, insurance surcharge, administrative fees, seat fees, change fees,
convenience fees, excess baggage and baggage handling fees are recognised upon the
completion of services rendered net of discounts. Freight and other related revenue are
recognised upon the completion of services rendered net of discounts.

Management fees, incentives and commission income are recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from aircraft operating lease is recorded on a straight line basis over the term of the
lease.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

The Group participates in a loyalty programme where customers accumulate points for
purchases made which entitle them to discounts on future purchases. Award points are
recognised as a cost of sale at the time of issue while revenue from the award points is
recognised when the points are redeemed. The amount of revenue is based on the number
of points redeemed and the redemption value of each point. Award points expire 36 months
after the initial sale.
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(u) Foreign currencies

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”}. The financial statements are presented in Ringgit
Malaysia, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or
loss, except when defetred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from operations are included in arriving
at the operating profit. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from borrowings
(after effects of effective hedges) and amounts due from associates are separately
disclosed after net operating profit.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all entities within the Group (none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are transiated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the tfransaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component
of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
operation is disposed of or sold, such exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the income statements as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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v

w)

Contingent liabilities

The Group and Company do not recoghise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events whose existence will be confirmed by uncertain future events beyond the control of
the Group and Company, or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in the extremely rare circumstance where there is a liability that cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. However contingent liabilities do not
include financial guarantee contracts.

The Group and Company recognise separately the contingent liabilities of the acqguirees as
part of allocating the cost of a business combination where their fair values can be measured
reliably. Where the fair values cannot be measured reliably, the resulting effect will be
reflected in the goodwill arising from the acquisitions.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the Group and Company measure the contingent
liabilities that are recognised separately at the date of acquisition at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in accordance with the provisions of MFRS 137 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recegnised in accordance with MFRS 118 “Revenue”.

Financial assets
(i Classitication

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss and foans and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category if it is acquired or incurred principally for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges (see Note 2{1)).
Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Leans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s and Company’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’, ‘amounts due from related
parties, a subsidiary, an associate and joint venture’ and ‘deposits, cash and bank
balances’ in the balance sheet.

35



Company No.

7341861

K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{w) Financial assets (continued)

(ii)

iii}

(iv)

Recognition and initial measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date,
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement — gains and losses

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Changes in the fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

including the effects of currency translation, interest and dividend income are
recognised in the income statement in the period in which the changes arise.

Subsequent measurement — impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event’) and that loss event
{or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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(w) Financial assets {continued)

(iv)

Subsequent measurement — Impairment of financial agsets (continued)

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss include:

. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

. The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial

difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial
reorganisation;

. Disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; or

. Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the

estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets since the initial
recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified
with the individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:

{i) adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio;
and
(i) national or local economic conditions that correlate with defauits on

the assets in the portfolio.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If ‘loans and receivables’ have a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
ohservable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

When an asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance account.

Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed
and the amount of the loss has been determined.
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(w)

(v)

(aa)

Financial assets {continued)
{(v) De-recognition

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investmenis have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations o pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less {(or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest methed.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Group Chief Executive Officer that makes strategic decisions.

Warrant reserve

Warrants reserve arising from the issuance of free warrants together with the rights issue, is
determined based on the allocation of the proceeds from the right issue using the fair value
of the warrants and the ordinary shares on a pro-rate basis. Proceeds from warrants which
are issued at a value, are credited to a warrants reserve. Warrants reserve is non-
distributable, and is fransferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of warrants.
Warrants reserve in relation to unexercised warrants at the expiry of the warrants period is
transferred to retained earnings.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated by the Directors and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reascnable under the circumstances.

The Group and Company make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results. To enhance the
information content of the estimates, certain key variables that are anticipated to have a material
impact to the Group's and Company's results and financial position are tested for sensitivity to
changes in the underlying parameters.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined below:

(i)

(ii)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of aircraft frames and engines

The Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives and residual valugs of aircraft frames
and engines based on factors such as business plan and sirategies, expected level of usage,
future technological developments and market prices.

Future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates
brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction of 5% in the residual
values of aircraft airframes and engines as disclosed in Note 2(e), would increase the
recorded depreciation for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 by RM3,346,000 (2015:
RM3,346,000) and decrease the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2016 by RM 17,603,044 (2015 RM10,704,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are mainly originating from unutilised tax incentives, unabsorbed capital
allowances and tax losses carry forward which have no expiry dates. The deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary differences can be ulilised. Estimating the future taxable profits
involves significant assumptions, especially in respect of regulatory approvals for prospective
routes, aircraft delivery, fares, load factors, fuel price, maintenance cost and currency
movements. These assumptions have been built based on past performance and adjusted
for non-recurring circumstances and a reasonable growth rate. Based on these projections,
management believes that the current non-time restricted temporary differences will be
utilised and has recognised the deferred tax assets as at balance sheet date.
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REVENUE
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Scheduled flights 2,532,543 1,682,740 2,532,543 1,682,740
Charter flights 254,720 421,662 254,720 421,662
Fue! surcharge - 98,861 - 98,861
Freight services 134,913 107,508 134,913 107,508
Ancillary revenue 642,715 476,407 642,715 476,407
Aircraft operating lease income 440,134 274,014 440,134 274,014
Management fees 1,509 1,361 - -

4,008,534 3,062,553 4,005,025 3,061,192

Ancillary revenue includes assigned seat, cancellation, documentation and other fees, and the on-
board sale of meals and merchandise.

STAFF COSTS

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Wages, salarles, bonuses and
allowances 341,776 289,900 338,297 285,939
Defined contribution retirement plan 27,334 25,362 26,799 25,003
Share option expense 484 559 484 559
369,594 315,821 363,580 311,501

The details of outstanding options over the ordinary shares of the Company granted under ESOS to
the eligible employees are disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Receivable Receivable

from from
the Company Subsidiaries Group
RM'000 RM'0Q0 RM'000
Directors’ salaries, bonus and allowances 2,400 - 2,400
Directors' fees 645 - 645
Directors’ defined contribution plan 288 - 288
3,333 - 3,333
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STAFF COSTS (CONTINUED)

The remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company is analysed as follows:

Range_of remuneration

Less than RM100,000
RM100,001 to RM150,000
RM150,001 to RM200,000
More than RM200,000

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The following items have been charged/{credited) In arriving at other operating expenses:

Management fee

Rental of land and buildings

Auditors’ remuneration

- Statutory audit

- Non-audit fees

Rental of equipment

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss
on operations

- Realised

- Unrealised

Advertising expenses

Credit card charges

In-flight meal expenses

Insurance expenses

Impairment of receivables

Property, plant and equipment written off

Non-current asset held for sale written off

Fair value gain on shareholders' benefits
scheme

Non-executive

2016 2015

3 4

2 3

1 1

1 1

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM000
- - 6,484 4,670

7,094 6,112 6,766 5,971
410 358 393 341

73 205 73 205

287 299 287 299
(50,741) (27,675) (50,741) (27,675)
{19,054) (50,235) (19,4086) {50,922)
62,327 42,056 62,284 42,056
39,827 32,478 39,827 32,478
19,662 21,630 19,662 21,630
28,065 26,508 28,062 26,508
11,585 - 11,585 -
15,189 7,752 15,189 7,752
12,335 - 12,335 -
(2,944) - (2,944) .
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OTHER INCOME

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM*Q00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Gain on disposal of aircraft and engine

pursuant to sales and leaseback

arrangements - 32,541 . 32,541
Commission income from insurance 6,665 7,095 6,665 7,095
Others 49,335 77,245 50,107 77,245
56,000 116,881 56,772 116,881

Other income (‘others’} includes concessions received from suppliers and commissions received from

advertising activities.

OTHER GAINS/{LOSSES)

Group Company
2018 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Other gain/(loss) from fuel contracts held
for trading 35,738 {7,585) 35,738 (7,585)
Impairment of investment in a joint venture - - - (53,888)
35,738 (7,585) 35,738 (61,473)
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FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS)

Finance income:

Interest income from deposits
with licensed bank

Discounting and accretion of interest on
deposits

Finance costs:

Interest expense on bank borrowings

Discounting and accretion of interest on
deposits

Bank facilities and other charges

FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES

Unrealised foreign exchange {losses)/
gains on:
- Borrowings
- Deposits and bank balances

Fair value movement recycled from
cash flow hedge reserve

Net foreign exchange losses

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
BRM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
5,193 3,849 5,183 3,849
19,582 15,963 19,582 15,963
24,775 19,812 24,775 19,812
{(37,716) (74,807) (37,7186) (74,807)
(9,614) (9,055) (9,614) (9,055)
(2,544) (269) (2,544) (269)
(49,874) (84,131) (49,874) (84,131)
(37,562) (312,890) (37,562) (312,890)
2,073 6,850 2,073 6,850
(35,489) (306,040) {35,489) (306,040)
- 6,478 - 6,478
(35,489) {299,562) {35,489) (299,562)
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TAXATION

Current taxation:
- Malaysian taxation
- Foreign taxation

Deferred taxation

Total tax expense/(credit)

Current taxation:
- Current financial year
- Previous financial year

Deferred taxation: (Note 13)
- Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000
(169) 169 (169) 169
{19) - - -
(188) 169 (169) 169
49,967 (97,028) 49,967 (97,028)
49,779 {96,859) 49,798 {96,859)
{19) 169 - 169
(169) - (169) -
(188) 169 {169) 169
49 967 (97,028) 49,967 (97,028)
49,779 (96,859) 49,798 (96,859)

The explanation of the relationship between taxation and profit/{loss) before taxation is as follows:

Profit/(Loss) before taxation

Tax calculated at Malaysian tax
rate of 24% (2015: 25%)

Tax effects of:

- overaccrual of prior year tax

- expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

- income not subject to tax

- changes in statutory tax rate

- share of results of an associate
and a joint venture

Tax expense/(credit)

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
RMO0O RM'000 RM000 RM'000
260,093 {446,475) 260,242 {463,406)
62,422 {(111,619) 62,458 (115,852)
{169) - (169) -
1,596 32,470 1,579 486,095
(14,070) (31,145) (14,070) (31,145)
- 4,043 - 4,043

- 9,392 - -
49,779 (96,859) 49,798 {(96,859)
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Company No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

EARNINGS/{(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) for the financial year by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.

Group
2016 2015
Net profit/(loss) for the financial year (RM'000) 210,314 (349,616)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue ("000}) 4,148,148 3,359,107
Earnings/(Loss) per share (sen) 5.1 {10.4)

Diluted earnings/{loss} per share

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share of the Group is similar to the basic earnings/{loss) per share as
the options over unissued ordinary shares granted pursuant to the ESOS at the end of the financial
year have an anti-dilutive effect. The exercise price of the ESOS of RM1.25 per option is above the
average market value of the Company's shares during the financial year.
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Company No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2016

Aircraft engines, airframe and
service potential

Aircraft spares

Motor vehicles

Office equipment, furniture and fitting

Ramp equipment

Accumulated

Accumulated impairment Net book

Cost _depreciation losses value
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000
2,205,663 {672,585) (29,047y 1,504,031
142,311 (75,220) (10,628) 56,463
4,734 (3,790) - 944
14,992 (7,569) (410) 7,013

44 (2) - 42
2,367,744 (759,166) (40,085) 1,568,493
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Company Na.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED})

Accumulated

Accumulated impairment Net book
Cost _depreciation losses value
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 31 December 2015

Aircraft engines, airframe and
service potential 2,185,260 {573,904) (29,047)1,582,309
Aircraft spares 139,834 (62,9599) (10,628) 66,207
Motor vehicles 4,408 (3,422) - 986
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 11,582 (5,946) {410) 5,236
Assets not yet in operation 22,875 - - 22,875
2,363,969 (646,271) (40,085)1,677,613

Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group and Company are aircrait pledged as security
for borrowings {Note 26) with a net boak value of RM1,494 million (2015: RM1,579 million).

The beneficial owhership and operational control of certain aircraft pledged as security far borrowings
rests with the Company when the aircraft is delivered to the Company. Where the legal title to the
aircraft is held by the financiers during delivery, the legal title will be transferred to the Company only

upon settlement of the respective facilities.
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Company No.
734181 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority. The
following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheets:

Deferred tax assets

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
492,854 542,821 492,854 542,821

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial year are as follows:

At beginning of financial year

Credited/(charged) tc income
statement (Note 10):
- Property, plant and equipment
- Tax losses
- Sales in advance
- Derivatives
- Others

At end of financial year

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
542,821 445,793 542,821 445,793
(210,161) 42,373 (210,161) 42,373
(11,598) 81,908 {11,598) 81,998
171,650 - 171,650 -
(10,397) (29,594) (10,397) (29,594)

10,539 2,251 10,539 2,251
(49,967) 97,028 (49,967) 97,028
492,854 542,821 492,854 542,821
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Company No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'CO0 RM 000 RM’000
Deferred tax assets (before offsetting)

- Tax incentives 251,456 251,456 251,456 251,456
- Tax losses 129,663 141,261 129,663 141,261
- Sales in advance 171,650 - 171,650 -
- Property, plant and equipment - 145,139 - 145,139
- Derivatives - 1,820 - 1,820
- Others 13,684 3,145 13,684 3,145
566,453 542,821 566,453 542,821
Offsetting (73,599) - {73,599) -
Deferred tax assets (after offsetting) 492,854 542,821 492 854 542,821

Deferred tax liabilities {before offsetting)
- Property, plant and eguipment (65,022) - (65,022) -
- Derivatives (8,577) - (8,577) -
(73,599) - (73,599) -
Offsetting 73,599 - 73,599 -

Deferred tax lizbilities (after offsetting) -

Deferred tax assets are mainly originating from unutilised tax incentives, unabsorbed capital
allowances and tax losses carry forward which have no expiry dates. As disclosed in Note 3 to the
financial statements, the deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can be utilised. Estimating the
future taxable profits involves significant assumgptions, especially in respect of regulatory approvals
for prospective routes, aircraft delivery, fares, load factors, fuel price, maintenance cost and currency
movements. These assumptions have been built based on past performance and adjusted for non-
recurring circumstances and a reasonable growth rate. Based on these projections, management
believes that the current non-time restricted temporary ditterences will be utilised and has recognised

the deferred tax assets as at balance sheet date.
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Company No.

7341681 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

DEPOSITS ON AIRCRAFT PURCHASES

The deposiis on aircraft purchases are denominated in US Dollar and are in respect of pre-delivery
payments on aircraft purchases. Pre-delivery payments constitute instalments made in respect of the
price of the aircraft and are deducted from the final price on delivery.

The deposits as at 31 December 2016 are in respect of aircraft purchases which will be delivered from
December 2018 to December 2027,

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, no borrowing cost were capitalised by the Group
and Company (2015: RM10,776,540) on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised in the
previcus financial year at the rate of 4.25% per annum.

OTHER DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Other deposits and prepayments include prepayments for maintenance of aircraft and deposits paid

to lessors for leased aircraft. The deposits are denominated in US Dollar.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2016 2015

RM'000 RM'000

Unquoted investments, at cost # #

# Denotes RM21 (2015: RM21).
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Company No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Group's effective

Country of equity interest
Name incorparation 2016 2015 Principal activities
% %
AirAsia X Services Australia 100 100 Provision of management
Pty Lid* logistical and marketing
services
AAX Capital Limited Malaysia 100 100 Dormant
AAX Leasing | Malaysia 100 100 Provision of engine leasing
Limited facilities
AAX Mauritius One Mauritius 100 100 Provision of aircraft leasing
Limited* facilities
AAX Capital Il Malaysia 100 100 Dormant
Limited*
Fly X Limited* Malaysia 100 100 Dormant

* Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Malaysia
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Company No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
Unquoted investments, at cost 20,018 20,018 20,018 20,018
Group's share of post-acquisition losses (20,018) (20,018) - -
- - 20,018 20,018
The details of the associate are as follows:
Principal place
of business/ Group’s effective
Country of equity interest
Name incorporation 2016 2015 Principal activities
% Y%
Thai AirAsia X
Co., Lid ("TAAX" Thailand 49 49 Commercial air transport

services
TAAX is a private company for which there is no quoted market price available for its shares.
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s investment in TAAX.
TAAX is operator of commercial air transport services which are based in Thailand. This associate
company is a strategic investment of the Company and form an essential part of the Company’s
growth strategy. They provide access to a wider geographical market and network coverage in the
provision of air transpart services across the ASEAN region.

Summarised financial information for associate

Set out below is the summarised financial information for the associate which is accounted for using
the equity method:

Summarised balance shest

TAAX
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000

Current
Cash and cash equivalents 99,828 58,673
Other current assets 175,155 182,861
Total current assets 274,983 241,534
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Company No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSQCIATE (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information for associate (continued)

Summarised balance sheet (continued)

Non-current
Assets

Current
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Net liabilities

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue

Cost of sales

Other operating expenses
Interest income

Interest expense

Other income

Profit/(Loss) before and after tax
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Dividend received from associate

55

TAAX
2016 2015
RM’000 RM’000
51,868 25,867
(38,791)  (120,880)
(379,181)  (241,373)
417,972)  (362,253)
(91,121) (94,852)
TAAX
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
906,686 610,651
(853,702)  (602,851)
(67,501) (60,932)
350 194
(5,502) (8,348)
27,540 4,091
7,871 (55,195)
7,871 (55,195)
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Company No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Recongiliation of summarised financial information

Opening net liabilities at 1 January
Profit/(Loss) for the financial year
Effect of foreign exchange translation
Closing net liabilities at 31 December

Interest in associate (49%)

Unrecognised share of loss {(49%)
- for the financial year
- cumulative as at 31 December

Carrying value at 31 December

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

Ungquoted investments, at cost

Group’s share of post-acquisition losses

Accumulated impairment losses

The details of the joint venture are as follows:

Principal place

of business/

Country of
Name ' incorporation
PT Indonesia AirAsia
Extra (IAAX") Indonesia

56

services

TAAX
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
(94,852) {36,337)
7,871 (55,195)
(4,140) (3,320)
(91,121) (94,852)
- 27,045
40,994 44,850
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 AM'000 RM'000 RM'000
53,888 53,888 53,888 53,888
(53,888) (53,888) - -
- - (53,888) {53,888)
Group's effective
equity interest
2016 2015 Principal activities
% %
49 49 Commercial air transpont
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Company No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

IAAX is a private company for which there is ne quoted market price available for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s investment in IAAX.

IAAX is operator of commercial air transport services which are based in Indonesia. This joint venture
company is a strategic investment of the Company and form an essential part of the Company's
growth strategy. They provide access to a wider geographical market and network coverage in the
provision of air transport services across the ASEAN region.

During the previous financial year, impairment losses were recognised due to the losses incurred by
the joint venture.

Summarised financial information for joint venture

Set out below is the summarised financial information for the joint venture which is accounted for using
the equity method:

Summarised balance sheet

IAAX
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 28,007 19,338
Other current assets 96,607 85,620
Total current assets 124,614 104,958
Non-current
Assets 50,862 17,107
Current
Financial liabilities (207,766) (67,927)
Other liabilities (27,835) (77,685)
Total current liabilities {235,601) {145,612)
Non-current
Liabilities {5,988) (5,727)
Net liabilities (66,113) (29,274)
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734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

Summatised financial information for joint venture (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue

Cost of sales

Other operating expenses
Interest income

Interest expense

Other income

Loss before and after tax

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

Dividend received from joint venture
Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Opening net (liabilities)/assets at 1 January

Loss for the financial year

Effect of foreign exchange transiation

Closing net liabilities at 31 December

Interest in joint venture (48%)

Unrecognised share of loss (49%)
- for the financial year
- cumulative as at 31 December

Carrying value at 31 December

58

IAAX

2016 2015
RM'000 RM’000
623,791 191,326
(627,365)  (283,089)
(22,426) (19,584)
257 216
(2,775) (310)
2,808 -
(25,620)  (111,441)
1,451 2,722
(24,169)  {108,719)
IAAX

2016 2015
RM’000 RM'000
(29,274) 76,666
(24,169)  (108,719)
(12,670) 2,779
(66,113) (29,274)
11,843 15,706
27,549 15,706
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734181 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group_and Company

2016 2015
Assets Liabilities Assels Liabilities
RM’000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
Current

Commeodity derivatives
— held for trading 28,153 - - (7,585)
— cash flow hedges 108,582 - - (107,630)
134,735 ' - - (115,215)

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset if the remaining maturity
of the hedge item is more than 12 months and, as a current asset, if the maturity of the hedged item
is less than 12 months. Derivatives held for trading are those which do not qualify for hedge
accounting.

] Fuel contracts

The outstanding number of barrels of Brent and fuel derivative contracts as at 31 December
2016 was 4,012,809 barrels (2015: 2,377,903 barrels).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has entered into Singapore Jet Kerosene fixed swap
which represents up to 0.35% (2015: 38%) of the Group’s total expected fuel volume for the
financial year 31 December 2017. The Group has also entered into Brent option and Crack
fixed swap contracts which represent an additional 77% (2015: 4%} of the Group's total
expected fuel voiume for the financial year 2017. This is to hedge against the fuel price risk
that the Group is exposed to. Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in equity
on Brent and fuel derivative contracts as of 31 December 2016 are recognised ih the Income
statement in the period or periods during which the hedged forecast transactions affects the
income statement.

INVENTORIES
Group and Company
2016 2015
RM'000 RM000
Beverages, consumables and in-flight merchandise 14,151 3,885
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734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for impairment
of receivables

Other receivables
Less: Allowance for impairment
of receivables

Deposits
Prepayments

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM000 RM000 RM0O00 RM'000
124,786 115,454 125,187 115,454
(746 (196) (746 {(1986)
124,040 115,258 124,441 115,258
73,791 79,093 73,783 79,086
(13,789 (2,754) (13,789) (2,754)
60,002 76,339 58,994 76,332
28,008 29,325 27,884 29,285
73,034 61,541 73,019 61,528
285,084 282,463 285,338 282,403

The normal credit terms of the Group and Company range from 15 to 30 days (2015: 15 to 30 days).

(a) Trade receivables

(i) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired for the Group and Company
of RM13,984,000 and RM14,385,000 respectively (2015: Group and Company:
RM82,966,000), are substantially from companies with good collection track records.

(ii) Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables for the Group and Company of
RM110,056,000 {2015: RM32,292,000) were past due but not impaired. These debts
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of

default.
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Company No.

734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED}
(a) Trade receivables (continued)
i) Financial assets that are past due but nat impaired (continued)

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is

as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Less than 30 days 23,978 10,605 23,978 10,605
Between 31 and 60 days 12,738 1,873 12,738 1,873
Between 61 and 90 days 4,537 814 4,537 814
Between 91 and 120 days 9,315 3,782 9,315 3,782
Between 121 and 180 days 15,945 6,617 15,945 6,617
More than 180 days 43,543 8,601 43,543 8,601
110,056 32,292 110,056 32,292

(iii) Financial assets that are past due and impaired

The carrying amounts of trade receivables individually determined to be impaired are

as follows:
Group and Company
2016 2015
RM'000 K|M'000
More than 180 days 746 196
Less: Allowance for impairment of receivables {746) (196)

The individually impaired trade receivables relate mainly to disputed balances with
customers or balances for which management is of the view that the amounts may
not be recoverable.

Movements on the allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RBM'000 RM'000 RM'000

At 1 January 196 196 196 196
Allowance for

impairment (Note 6) 550 - 550 .

At 31 December 746 196 746 196
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734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

{b) Other receivables

Other receivables include refunds of value-added tax receivable from the authorities in various
countries in which the Group operates.

)] Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Other receivahles that are neither past due nor impaired for the Group and Company
of RM37,672,000 and RM37,664,000 (2015: Group: RM52,545,000, Company:
RM52,538,000) respectively are substantially with companies with good collection
track records.

(i) Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
As at 31 December 20186, other receivables for the Group and Company of
RM22,330,000 (2015: RM23,784,000) were past due. These debts relate to a number
of external parties where there is no expectation of default. The ageing analysis of
these other receivables that are past due but not impaired is as follows:

Group and Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM'000

Less than 30 days 9,200 5,647
Between 31 and 60 days - 134
Between 61 and 90 days 1,353 502
Between 91 and 120 days - 6,698
Between 121 and 180 days 262 5,231
More than 180 days 11,515 5,582
22,330 23,794

(iii) Financial assets that are past due and impaired

The carrying amounts of other receivables individually determined to be impaired
are as follows:

Group and Company

2016 2015

RM'000 RM’000

More than 180 days 13,789 2,754
Less: Allowance for impairment of receivables {13,789) (2,754)

The individually impaired other receivables relate mainly to disputed balances with
customers or balances for which management is of the view that the amounts may
not be recoverable.
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AIRASIA X BERHAD
{Incorporated in Maldysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

{b) Other receivables (continued)

(iii) Financial assets that are past due and impaired (continued)

Movements on the allowance for impairment of cther receivables are as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2,754 2,754 2,754 2,754
Allowance for

impairment (Note 6) 11,035 - 11,035 -
At 31 December 13,788 2,754 13,789 2,754

The currency profile of receivables and deposits {(excluding prepayments) is as follows:
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Ringgit Malaysia 123,505 59,901 123,505 59,901
US Dollar 21,743 91,049 21,743 91,049
Australian Dollar 27,042 59,736 27,311 59,689
Euro 1,230 588 1,230 588
Indian Rupee 3,522 1,529 3,522 1,529
New Zealand Dollar 310 - 310 -
Others 34,698 8,119 34,698 8,119
212,050 220,922 212,319 220,875

The other classes within receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
receivables menticned above. The Group and Company do not hold any collateral as security.,

Deposits of the Group and Company at the balance sheet date are with a number of external parties

for which there is no expectation of defauli.

Included in prepayments are advances made for purchases of fuel, lease of aircraft and maintenance

of engines.

Deposits include funds placed with lessor in respect of maintenance of the leased aircraft.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company's trade and other receivables approximate their

fair values.
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM / (TO) RELATED PARTIES, AN ASSOCIATE, A JOINT VENTURE AND
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from/(to) related parties are in respect of trading transactions. The normal credit
terms of the Group and Company range from 30 to 60 days (2015: 30 to 60 days).

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000

Amounts due from related parties 51,561 30,103 51,561 29,330
Amount due from a joint venture 112,816 55,570 112,816 55,570
Amount due from an associate 69,590 26,150 - -
Amount due from a subsidiary - - 69,580 26,150

233,967 111,823 233,967 111,050

Amounts due to related parties (25,256) (45,668) (25,879) {(45,668)
Amounts due to subsidiaries - - (1,488) {(2,263)

(25,256) (45,668) (27,367) (47,931)

The currency profile of amounts due from related parties, a joint venture, an associate and a subsidiary
are as follows:

Group Company

2016 2015 016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000

Ringgit Malaysia 34,725 15,797 34,725 15,797
Australian Dollar - 773 - -
US Dollar 198,371 94,108 198,371 94,108
Others 871 1,145 871 1,145
233,967 111,823 233,967 111,050

Amounts due from related parties, an associate, a joint venture, and a subsidiary that are neither past
due nor impaired for the Group and Company amounted to RM20,126,000 (2015: RM44,552,000 and
RM43,779,000) respectively.
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM / (TO) RELATED PARTIES, AN ASSOCIATE, A JOINT VENTURE AND
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of amounts due from related parties, an asscciate, a foint venture and a subsidiary
that are past due but not impaired is as follows:

Group Company

2016 2015 016 2015

RM’000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000

Less than 6 months 103,121 62,105 103,121 62,105
More than 6 months 110,720 5,166 110,720 5,166
213,841 67,271 213,841 67,271

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is the carrying value of the amounts
due from related parties, an associate, a joint venture, and a subsidiary mentioned above.

The Group and Company have not made any impairment on these balances as management is of the
view that these amounts are recoverable as there is no history of default.

The currency profile of amounts due to related parties, an associate and subsidiaries are as follows:

Group Company

20186 2015 2016 2015

RM'0Q0 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Ringgit Malaysia 10,660 16,184 10,660 16,184
Australian Dollar - - 1,488 1,450
US Dollar 14,596 29,484 15,219 29,484
New Zealand Dollar - - - 813
25,256 45,668 27,367 47,931

DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK BALANCES

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivaients include the following:

Group Company

2016 2015 016 2015

RM'000 RM'C00 RM'000 RM000

Cash and bank balances 382,406 252,347 380,790 251,832
Deposits with licensed banks 39,615 58,442 39,615 58,442
422,021 310,789 420,405 310,274

Deposits pledged as securities (39,615) (58,442) (39,615) (58,442)
Cash and cash equivalents 382,406 252,347 380,790 251,832
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DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

The currency profile of deposits, cash and bank balances is as follows:

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000

Ringgit Malaysia 263,547 154,841 263,308 154,841
US Dollar 53,261 92,039 53,261 92,039
Australian Dolfar 16,125 22,846 14,517 22,338
Chinese Renminbi 13,497 19,849 13,497 19,949
Japanese Yen 8,210 3,511 8,210 3,511
Indian Rupee 8,834 1,589 8,834 1,589
Euro 888 1,349 888 1,349
Others 57.659 14,665 57,890 14,658
422,021 310,789 420,405 310,274

The Group and Company's weighted average effective interest rate of deposits at the balance sheet
date is 2.98 % (2015: 2.77 %) per annum.

The deposits with licensed banks of the Group and Company amounting o RM39,615,000 (2015:
RM58,442,000} are pledged as securities for banking facilities granted to the Group and Company
{Note 26).

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Group and Company

2016 2015
RM'000 RM000
Property, plant and equipment 92,781 105,116

The non-current assets held for sale are for certain alrcraft equipments for which potential buyers
have been identified. The sale is expected to he completed before the end of 2017.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RMC00

Non-current:
Aircraft maintenance provision 591,574 409,098 591,574 409,098
Other deposits 62,796 30,837 62,796 30,837

654,370 439,935 654,370 439,835
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES {CONTINUED)

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMQ00 RM'QQ0 RM'000 RM000

Current:
Trade payables 251,253 401,618 251,253 401,308
Other payables and accruals 626,993 447,457 626,252 446,971

878,246 849,075 877,505 848,279

Included in other payables and accruals are operational expenses and passenger service charges
payable to airport authorities.

The credit term of trade payables granted to the Group and Company is 0 to 90 days (2015: G to 90
days).

The currency profile of trade and other payables {excluding aircraft maintenance provision) is as
follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RAM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Ringgit Malaysia 140,258 318,815 140,236 318,815
US Dollar 480,746 415,258 480,746 415,258
Australian Dollar 107,870 64,209 107,151 63,413
Euro 7,600 9,013 7,600 9,013
Indian Rupee 1,759 - 1,759 -
Japanese Yen 58,687 28,536 58,687 28,536
Chinese Renminbi 46,229 27,723 46,229 27,723
Others 97,893 16,358 97,893 16,358
941,042 879,912 940,301 879,116

The movement in aircraft maintenance provision is as follows:
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 409,098 - 408,098 -
Additions during the year 182,476 409,088 182,476 409,098
At 31 December 581,574 409,098 591,574 409,098
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Group and Company

BORROWINGS
Weighted average
rate of finance
2016 2015
% %
Current
Secured:
- Revolving credit - 4.52
- Term loans 3.17 3.02
- Hire purchase 2.80 2.80
Non-current
Secured: '
- Term loans 3.17 3.02
- Hire purchase 2.80 2.80

Total borrowings

Total borrowings consist of the following banking fagilities:

Fixed rate borrowings
Floating rate borrowings

The Group's and Company’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not |ater than 5 years
Later than 5 years

The currency profile of borrowings is as follows:

Ringgit Malaysia
US Dollar

68

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000

- 120,120
208,222 199,341
16 16
208,238 319,477
952,072 1,109,577
16 33
952,088 1,109,610
1,160,326 1,429,087

Group and Company

2016 2015
RM000 RM'000
643,362 755,485
516,064 673,602

1,160,326 1,429,087
208,238 319,477
832.912 781,653
119,176 327,957

1,160,326 1,429,087

33 49
1,160,293 1,429,038
1,160,326 1,429,087
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BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The carrying amounis and fair values of the fixed rate borrowings are as follows:

Group and Company

2016 2015

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

amount value _amount value

RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'C00

Term loans 643,329 652,237 755,436 726,472
Hire purchase 33 20 49 55

643,362 652,257 755,485 726,527

The fair values of floating rate borrowings approximates their carrying amounts, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The fair values of the fixed rate borrowings are based on cash flows discounted using borrowing rates
that are reflective of the Group and Company's credit risk at the balance sheet date, at 1.76% (2015:
3.83%) per annum. The fair values of fixed rate borrowings are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Revolving credit facilities

The revolving credit facility was to finance pre-delivery payments (“PDPs"} in respect of the Group's
and Company’s firm order of Airbus A330-300 aircraft, with an option to acquire additional Airbus
A330-300 aircraft. The facility becomes repayable upon delivery of the relevant aircraft and carries
interest ranging from 3.2% to 3.25% (2015: 3.2% to 3.25%) per annum above the bank’s USD cost of
funds.

The revolving credit was fully repaid during the financial year.
Term loans

The term loans are for the purchase of new Airbus A330-300 aircraft. The repayment of the term loans
is on a quarterly basis over 10 to 12 years, with equal principal instalments, at a combination of floating
rate of LIBOR + 0.8% and fixed interest rates of between 2.82% to 5.45% (2015: 2.82% to 5.45%) per
annum. The term loans are secured by the following:

(a) Assignment of rights under contract with Airbus over each aircraft;
(b) Assignment of insurance of each aircraft; and

(c) Assignment of airframe and engine warranties of each aircraft.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
2016 2015
RMO00 RM000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of RM0.15 each:
At beginning of financial year 1,000,000 500,000
Created during the financial year - 500,000
At end of financial year 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total authorised ' 1,000,000 1,000,000

Group and Company
2018 2015
RM'000 RM’000

Issued and fully paid up:

Ordinary shares of RM0.15 each:
At beginning of financial year 622,222 355,556

issuance of shares during the financial year 266,666
At end of financial year 622,222 622,222
Total issued and fully paid up 622,222 622,222

On 27 March 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from RM500,000,000
comprising 3,333,333,333 ordinary shares to RM1,000,000,000 comprising 6,666,666,667 ordinary
shares.

On 11 June 2015, the Company completed a renounceable rights lssue of new ordinary shares of
RM0.15 each in the Company together with free detachable warrants for working capital purpose. As
aresult, 1,777,777,790 ordinary shares of RM0.15 each were issued during the financial year. These
new ordinary shares rank pari passu with the existing ordinary shares. Following the completion of
the exercise, the issued and fully paid ordinary shares of the Company consists of 4,148,148,177
ordinatry shares of RM0.15 each with a share premium of RM911,820,644 and warrant reserve of
RMG2,222,223.
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“‘ESOS")

The Company had implemented an ESOS which entails the issuance of up to ten percent {(10%) of
the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any one time pursuant to the exercise of
options io be granted under the ESOS, to full-time eligible employees of the Group (“ESOS Opticns™).
The tenure of the ESOS shall be five (5} years with an option to extend for a further five (5) years,
subject to a maximum duration of ten (10} years. The ESOS is governed by the By-Laws which were
approved by the shareholders on 12 October 2012.

The main features of the ESQOS are as follows:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

The maximum number of ordinary shares, which may be allotted pursuant to the exercise of
options under the scheme, shall not exceed ten per cent (10%) of the issued and paid-up
share capital of the Company at any point in time during the duration of the scheme.

The ESOS Committee duly authorised by the Board {and governed by the By-Laws) may, at
ils absolute discretion, offer such number of ESOS Options to the eligible employees during
the subsistence of the ESOS, provided that such number of new shares issued under the
ESOS Options granted shall not exceed the maximum number permitied under the listing
requirements of Bursa Malaysia, the By-Laws and any laws, regulations and guidelines issued
by other relevant authorities.

An eligible employee who accepts an offer of ESOS Option must return, on or before the
expiry date, the duly completed prescribed acceptance form accompanied by the payment of
the sum of RM1.00 as a consideration for acceptance of that offer. If that offer is not accepted
in such manner, the offer shall, upon the expiry date, automatically lapse and be null and void.

The options granted are exercisable in tranches of 25% at each anniversary of date of grant.
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“ESOS”) (CONTINUED)

The shares to be allotted and issued upon any valid exercise of options will, upen such allotment and
issuance, rank pari passu in all respects with the existing and issued shares except that such shares
so issued will not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments andfor any other distributions which
may be declared, made or paid to shareholders prior to the date of allotment of such shares. The
options shall not carry any right to vote at a general meeting of the Company.

Set out below are details of options over the ordinary shares of the Company granted under the ESOS:

Expiry Exercise At At

Grant date date price 1.1.2016 Adjustment Exercised Forfeited 31.12.2016

RM/share ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

1 July 2013 11 October 0.99* 3,976 - - (205 3,771
2017

Expiry Exercise At At

Grant date date price 1.1.2015 Adjustment Exercised Forfeited 31.12.2015

RM/share ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

1 July 2013 11 October 0.99* 6,150 181* - {2,355) 3,976
2017

*  The exercise price of the options and number of options granted were adjusted as a result of the
rights issue exercise on 11 June 2015.

Qut of the 3,770,663 outstanding options (2015; 3,976,148 outstanding options), 2,920,663 options
(2015: 3,076,148 options) were exercisable as at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value as at the grant date of share options was determined using the Black Scholes valuation
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The inputs
to the model used were as follows:

2016 2015
Expected volatility (%) 33.97 33.97
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.84 3.84
Expected life of option (years) 4 4
Share price at date of grant (RM) 1.25 1.25
Exercise price of option {RM) 1.25 1.25
Fair value of option at date of grant (RM) 0.41 0.41

Volatility is measured over a 4-year period to increase the credibility of assumption.

The amount recognised in the financial statements (Note 5) for all employees arising from the ESOS
to the Group and Company are RM484,000 (2015: RM559,000).
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OTHER RESERVES

Group and Company

At 1 January 2016
Net change in fair value
Amounts transferred to income statement

At 31 December 2016

At 1 January 2015
Net change in fair value
Amounts transferred to income statement

At 31 December 2015

73

Cash fiow Share
hedge option
reserve reserve Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM0O00
(107,630) 2,074 (105,556)
106,582 484 107,066
107,630 - 107,630
106,582 2,558 109,140
8,478 1,515 7,993
(107,630) 559 (107,071}
(6,478) - (6,478)
(107,630) 2,074 (105,556)
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COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

Group and Company

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Property, plant and equipment — approved and
contracted for:
- Not later than 1 year - -
- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 30,289,045 19,064,614
- Later than 5 years 88,803,156 94,842,046

119,092,201 113,906,660

Included in capital commitments as at 31 December 2016 is the purchase of Airbus A330 and
A350 aircraft over the next 12 years.

Non-cancellable operating leases

The future minimum lease payments and sublease receipts under non-cancellable operating
ieases are as follows:

Group and Company

20186 2015

Future Future Future Future

minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease sublease lease sublease

payments receipts payments receipis

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Not later than 1 year 1,024,614 315,396 987,113 293,769
Later than 1 year and not

later than 5 years 4,094,546 1,261,582 3,920,000 1,206,650

Later than 5 years 3,893,976 954,762 4,700,684 1,214,852

9,013,136 2,631,740 9,607,797 2,715,271

The Group leases various aircraft and engines under non-cancellable operating iease
agreements. The lease terms are between 10 to 12 years.
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the financial statements, set out below
are other significant related party disclosures.

The related parties of the Company and their relationships at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Name of Companies Relationship

AirAsia X Services Pty Lid Subsidiary

AirAsia X Mauritius One Ltd Subsidiary

Thai AirAsia X Co., Ltd Associate

PT Indonesia AirAsia Extra Joint Venture

AirAsia Berhad Shareholder of the Company for which there is no

control, significant influence or joint control;
common Directors and shareholders
CaterhamJet Global Lid Common Directors and shareholders

Associates of AirAsia Berhad

- Thai AirAsia Co., Ltd Common Directors and shareholders

- PT Indonesia AirAsia Common Directors and shareholders

- AirAsia Japan Co. Ltd Commoan Directors and shareholders

- Philippines AirAsia (formerly known as Common Directors and shareholders
AirAsia Inc

- Philippines AirAsia Inc (formerly known as Common Directors and sharehclders
Zest Airway Inc

- AirAsia {India) Pvt Ltd Common Directors and shareholders

- AAE Travel Pte Lid Common Directors and shareholders

Joint venture of AirAsia Berhad
- Asian Aviation Centre of Excellence Sdn Bhd Common shareholders

Subsidiaries of AirAsia Berhad

- AirAsia Global Shared Services Sdn Bhd Common Directers and shareholders

- Rokki Sdn Bhd (formerly known Commeon Directers and shareholders
as Tune Box Sdn Bhd)

- Think Big Digital Sdn Bhd Common Directers and shareholders

- TPAAY Asia Sdn Bhd (formerly known as Common Directors and shareholders

Tune Maney Sdn Bhd)

Other related entities

- Tune Protect Re Ltd (formerly known as Common Directors and shareholders
Tune GenRe Ltd)
- Tune Insurance Malaysia Berhad Common Directors and shareholders

All related party transactions were carried out on agreed terms and conditions.
Key management personnel are categorised as head or senior management officers of key operating

divisions within the Group and Company. The key management compensation s disclosed in Note
30(g) below.
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Income:

Aircraft operating lease income
for leased aircraft
- AAX Mauritius One Limited
- PT Indonesia AirAsia Extra
- Thai AirAsia X Co., Lid

Provision of carried passenger
services to
- AirAsia Berhad
- Thai AirAsia X Co., Ltd

Commission on travel insurance
for passengers charged to
- Tune Insurance Malaysia Berhad

Management fees charged to
- PT Indonesia AirAsia

Recharges:

Recharges of expenses to
- PT Indonesia AirAsia
- PT Indonesia AirAsia Extra
- Thai AirAsia X Co., Lid
- Thai AirAsia Co., Ltd
- Philippines AirAsia Inc
- Philippines AirAsia

Recharges of expenses by
- AirAsia Berhad
- AirAsia Japan Co., Lid.
- AirAsia (India) Pvt Ltd

Other charges:

Management fees charged by
- AirAsia X Services Piy Ltd

Brand license fee charged by
- AirAsia Berhad

Training services charged by
- Asian Aviation Centre of
Excellence Sdn Bhd

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RMO00
- - 329,402 179,025
110,732 94,989 110,732 94,989
329,402 179,025 - -
42 867 10,940 42,867 10,940
- 16,542 - 16,542
3,920 5,211 3,920 5211
1,509 1,361 - -
1,271 5,835 1,271 5,835
3,260 2,082 3,260 2,082
10,370 1,819 10,370 1,819
979 2,598 979 2,598
3,784 3,663 3,784 3,663
- 1,884 - 1,884
(65,640) (7,833) (65,640) (7,833)
(604) - (804) -
{841) - (841) -
- - {6,836) (3,983)
(8,530) (8,530) (8,530) (8,530)
(11,032) {13,214) (11,032) {13,214)
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Other charges: {continued)

In-flight entertainment system
and software expense charged by
- Rokki Sdn Bhd

Charter air travel services
charged by
- CaterhamJet Global Ltd

Shared service management
fee charged by
- AirAsia Global Shared Services
Sdn Bhd

Premium collected on travel
insurance for passengers paid to:

- Tune Insurance Malaysia Berhad

Receivables:

- AAX Mauritius One Limited

- PT Indonesia AirAsia

- Philippines AirAsia (including
Philippines AirAsia Inc)

- Thai AirAsia X Co., Ltd

- PT Indonesia AirAsia Extra

- AirAsia Berhad

- AirAsia {India) Pvt Ltd

- Others

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'O00 RM’000 RMOCO RM'000
(3,827) (2,536) (3,827) (2,536)
(6,606) (6,386) (6,606) (6,386)
(5,126) (2,481) (5,126) (2,481)
{15,681) (20,843) (15,681) (20,843)
- - 69,590 26,150
- 9,548 : - 9,548
8,862 7,273 8,862 7.273
69,590 26,150 - -
112,816 55,570 112,816 55,570
34,719 1,513 34,719 1,513
6,751 4,431 8,751 4,431
1,229 7,338 1,229 6,565
233,967 111,823 233,967 111,050
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Group Company
016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
f) Payables:
- Asian Aviation Centre
of Excelience Sdn Bhd 5,483 4,224 5,483 4,224
- Rokki Sdn Bhd 1,307 1,058 1,307 1,058
- Tune Insurance Malaysia Berhad 6,454 2,676 - 6,454 2,676
- PT Indonesia AirAsia 881 - 1,504 -
- Thai AirAsia Co., Lid 5,806 30,030 5,806 30,030
- AirAsia X Services Pty Lid - - 1,488 1,450
- CaterhamJet Global Ltd 2,552 2,415 2,552 2,415
- Philippines AirAsia Inc - 4,538 - 4,538
- Others 2,773 727 2,773 1,540
25,256 45,668 27,367 47,931
(@) Key management compensation:

- basic salaries, bonus and
allowances 9,643 7,863 9,643 7,863
- defined contribution plan 1,007 891 1,007 891
- fees 636 721 636 721
11,286 9,475 11,286 9,475

Included in the key management compensation is Executive Director's remuneration as
disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Group's and Company's financial risk management policies seek to ensure that adequate
financial resources are available for the development of the Group's and Company's businesses whilst
managing their market risk (inciuding fuel price risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange
rigk}, credit risk and liguidity and cash flow risk. The Group and Company operate within defined
guidelines that are approved and reviewed periodically by the Board of Directors to minimise the
effects of such volatility on their financial performance.

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the objectives and underlying principles of financial
risk management for the Group and the Company. The management team then establishes detailed
policies such as risk identification and measurement, exposure limits and risk management strategies.
Risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market
condition, and the Group’s and Company's activities.

The Group and Company also seek to ensure that the financial resources that are available for the
development of the Group’s and Company's businesses are constantly monitored and managed vis-
a-vis its ongoing exposure to fuel price, interest rate, foreign currency exchange, credit, liquidity and
cash flow risks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activities are as follows:

(a)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as foreign currency exchange rates, jet
fuel prices and interest rates. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters while optimising the return on risk.

(i)

Fuel price risk

The Group and Company are exposed 1o jet fuel price risk arising from the fluctuations
in the prices of jet fuel. The Group and Company rely on a related party for certain
treasury activities, including hedging of fuel price, which is contracted and managed
by the related party. Any gain or loss arising from fuel hedging is recognised when
the risk transfers to the Group and Company upon consumption of the fuel, within
“Aircraft fuel expenses” in Operating Expenses.

During the financial year ended 31 December 20186, the Group and Company entered
into Singapore Jet Kerosene fixed swap, Brent option and Crack swap contracts.
There were 4,012,809 barrels (2015; 2,377,903 barrels) of Brent and fuel contracts
outstanding as at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 20186, if USD denominated barre! had been USD5 higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, the impact on the post-tax profit and equity for
the year end equity are tabulated below:

2016 2015

+USD5 -USD5 +USD5 -UsD5

RM'Q00 RWM'O00 RM'000 RM'000

Impact on post tax profits (8,727) 424 2,515 (3,081)
Impact on other

comprehensive income 76,857 (66,499) 38,811 (38,811)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fiuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates.

In view of the substantial borrowings taken to finance the acquisition of aircraft, the
Group's and Company’s income and operating cash flows are also influenced by
changes in market interest rates. Interest rate exposure arises from the Group's and
Company’s floating rate borrowings and deposits. Surplus funds are placed with
reputable financial institutions at the most favourable interest rate.

At 31 December 20186, if interest rate on USD denominated borrowings had been 60
basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the impact on the post-
tax profit for the financial year are tabulated below:

2016 2015

+60bps -60bps +60bps -60bps

RM’'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Impact on post tax profits (3,538) 3,538 (3,497) 3,497
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Market risk {continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk

Apart from Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), the Group and Company transact business in
various foreign currencies including United States Dollar (“USD"}, Australian Dollar
(“AUD"™), EURO, Indian Rupee (“INR"}, Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB"} and Japanese Yen
(“JPY"). In addition, the Group and Company have significant borrowings in USD
(Note 28), mainly to finance the purchase of aircraft and pre-delivery payments in
respect of the Group’s and Company's firm order of Airbus A330-300 aircrafi.
Therefore, the Group and Company are exposed to currency exchange risk. These
exposures are managed, to the extent possible, by natural hedges that arise when
payments for foreign currency payables are matched against receivables
denominated in the same foreign currency, or whenever possible by intragroup
arrangements and settlements.

As at 31 December 20186, if RM had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the USD
with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the financial year for the Group
and Company would have been RM40.4 million (2015: RM42.6 million) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of USD
denominated recelvables and borrowings. Similarly, the Iimpact on other
comprehensive income would have been RM&.7 million (2015: BRM5.4 million)
higher/lower due to the cash flow hedging in USD. The exposure to other foreign
currency risk of the Group and the Company is not material and hence, sensitivity
analysis is not presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

()

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group and Company if a customer or a counter
party to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally
from the Group’s and Company’s receivables from customers, cash and cash equivalents and
financial assets (derivative instruments).

The Group’s and Company’s expasure to credit risk or the risk of counterparties defaulting
arises mainly from various deposits and bank balances, and receivables. As the Group and
Company do not hold collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
total carrying amounts of these financial assets in the balance sheet. Credit risk, or the risk of
counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of credit approvals, limits and
menitoring procedures.

Credit risk relating to receivables is minimised by regular monitoring and, in addition, credit
risk is controlled as the majority of the Group’s and Company's deposits and bank balances
are placed with major financial institutions and reputable parties. The Directors are of the view
that the possibility of non-performance by the majority of these financial institutions is remote
on the basis of their financial strength and support of their respective governments.

The Group and Company generally have no concentration of credit risk arising from trade
receivables.

Liquidity and cash flow risk

The Group's and Company’s policy on liguidity risk management is to maintain sufficient cash
and cash equivalents and to have available funding through adequate amounts of committed
credit facilities and credit lines for working capital requirements.

Whilst the Group's and Company's current liabilities exceeded their current assets by
RM642,595,000 and RMB45,481,000 {2015: RM1,186,057,000 and RM1,189,005,000)
respectively, the Directors are of the view that the Group and the Company will have sufficient
cash flows for the next twelve months from the reporting date to meet their cash flow
reguirements, The Directors believe that the Group and the Company are able to realise their
assets and discharge their liahilities in the normal course of business and that the financial
position will be improved through future operating profits and cash flows.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{c) Liguidity and cash flow risk {continued)

The Directors are committed to ensuring that the Group and Company will have sufficient
funds to enable the Group and Company to meet their liabilities as they fall due and to carry
on their business without significant curtailment of operations. This includes raising funds from
the market, as evidenced from the successful completion of the renounceable rights issue
exercise on 11 June 2015, as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities into relevart maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Group
Under 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Over 5 years
RM'000 RM000 RM000 RM'000
At 31 December 2016
Term loans 240,080 233,033 568,960 212,286
Hire purchase 19 19 - -
Trade and other payables 878,246 - - 439,935
Amounts due to related
parties 25,256 - - -
1,143,601 233,052 568,960 652,231
At 31 December 2015
Term loans 236,446 229,627 632,726 337,388
Revolving credit 120,860 - - -
Hire purchase 19 19 19 -
Trade and other payables 849,075 - - 451,547
Amounts due to related
parties 45,668 - - -
1,252,068 229,646 632,745 788,945
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Liquidity and cash flow risk (continued)

Company
Under 1 year 1-2 yvears 2-5years Over5 vears
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 31 December 2016
Term loans 240,080 233,033 568,860 212,296
Hire purchase 19 19 - -
Trade and other payables 877,505 - - 439,935
Amounts due to related
parties 25,879 - - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,488 - - -
1,144,971 233,052 568,960 652,231
At 31 December 2015
Term loans 236,446 229,627 632,726 337,398
Revolving credit 120,860 - - -
Hire purchase 19 19 19 -
Trade and other payables 848,279 - - 451,547
Amounts due to related
parties 45,668 - - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries 2,263 - - -
1,253,535 229,646 632,745 788,945
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity and cash fiow risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s and Company's derivative financial instruments for
which contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

Less than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Over5 years
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
Group and Company
At 31 December 2016
Net-settled derivatives
Trading - - - .
Hedging - - - -
At 31 December 2015
Net-settled derivatives
Trading 5,718 - - -
Hedging 108,083 - - -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern in order provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including “current and non-current borrowings” as shown in the Group and
Company's balance sheets) less cash and cash equivalents, Total capital is calculated as
‘equity’ as shown in the Group and Company’s balance sheets plus net debt.

The Group's and Company’s overall strategy remained unchanged from 2015. The gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Group Cornpany

2018 2015 2016 2015

RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000

Total bdrrowings (Note 26) 1,160,326 1,429,087 1,160,326 1,429,087
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

(Note 23) (382,406) (252,347) {(380,790) (251,832)

Net debt 777,920 1,176,740 779,538 1,177,255

Total equity attributable to equity
holders of the Group and Company 1,056,885 631,807 1,074,017 648,877

Total capital 1,834,805 1,808,547 1,853,553 1,826,132

Gearing ratio 42 4% 65.1% 42.1% 64.5%

The Group and the Company are in compliance with all externally imposed capital
requirements for the financial years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, except
that the Group and the Company did not meet certain financial ratio covenants for one
borrowing facility totalling RM120 million as at 31 December 2015. The lender had granted
indulgences to the Group and the Company from having to comply with the financial covenant
ratios for the financial year ended 31 December 2015. The said borrowing facility was fully
settled during the financial year. As the covenants are enforced annually, the Group monitors
compliance with the financial covenant ratios at the end of each financia! year. In the event of .
a breach, the Group will seek indulgences from the respective banks to ensure that the Group
and the Company are not in default of any borrowings. The Group’s and the Company’s
overall strategy for capital risk management remains unchanged.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED}
(e) Fair value measurement
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current assets, and trade
and other current liabilities approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The fair values of other classes of financial assets
and liabilities are disclosed in the respective notes to financial statements.

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Group's financial instruments are measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Disclosure
of fair value measurements are by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

* Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1),

¢ Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liahility, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (ihat is, derived from prices) {Level
2);

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unochservable inputs) (Level 3).

The following table presents the Group and Company's assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Group and Company
31 December 2016
Assets
Financizal assets at fair
value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives - 28,153 - 28,153
Derivatives used for hedging - 106,582 - 108,582
- 134,735 - 134,735
31 December 2015
Liahilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives - (7,585) - {(7,585)
Derivatives used for hedging - {107,630) - (107,630)
- (115,215) - {115,215)

91



31

Company No.

734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED}
{e) Fair value measurement {continued)

Where fair value is determined using unquoted market prices in less active markets or quoted
prices for similar assets and liabilities, such instruments are generally classified as Level 2.
In cases where quoted prices are generally not available, the Group then determines fair value
based upon valuation techniques thal use as Inputs, market parameters including but not
limited to yield curves, volatilities and foreign exchange rates. The Group's Level 2 financial
instruments comprise fuel swap contracts. The fair value of fuel swap contracts is determined
using forward fuel price at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to
present value,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial instruments by category

Group

31 December 2016

Assets as per balance sheet

Trade and other receivables

excluding prepayments and deposits
Other deposits excluding prepayments
Amounts due from related parties
Amount due from a joint venture
Amount due from an associate
Derivative financial instruments
Deposits, cash and bank balances

Total

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Amount due to related parties

Total

Assets
at fair value
through  Derivatives
the profit used for Loan and
and loss -hedqging receivables Total
RWM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
- - 184,042 184,042
- - 467,302 467,302
- - 51,561 51,561
- - 112,816 112,816
- - 69,590 69,590
106,582 28,153 - 134,735
- - 422,021 422,021
106,582 28,153 1,307,332 1,442,067
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Other
financial
ifabilities at
amortised
cost
RM000

1,160,326
941,042
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

{(a) Financial instruments by category {continued)
Loan and
Group receivables
RM'000
31 December 2015
Assets as per balance sheet
Trade and cther receivables excluding prepayments and deposits 191,597
Other deposits excluding prepayments 472,500
Amounts due from related parties 30,103
Amount due from a joint venture 55,570
Amount due from an associate 26,150
Deposits, cash and bank balances 310,789
Total 1,086,709
Liabilities Other
at fair value financial
through  Derivatives liabilities at
the profit used for amortised
and loss hedging cost Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Borrowings - 1,429,087 1,429,087
Trade and other payables - - 879,912 879,912
Amount due io related parties - - 45,668 45,668
Derivative financial instruments 7,585 107,630 - 115,215
Total 7,585 107,630 2,354,667 2,469,882
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial instruments by category (continued)
Assets
at fair value
through  Derivatives
the profit usedfor Loan and
Company and loss hedging receivables Total
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'G00
31 December 2016
Assets as per balance sheet
Trade and other receivables
excluding prepayments and deposits - - 184,435 184,435
Other deposits excluding prepayments - - 467,178 467,178
Amounts due from related parties - - 51,561 51,561
Amount due from a joint venture - - 112,816 112,816
Amount due from a subsidiary - - 69,590 69,590
Derivative financial instruments 106,582 28,153 - 134,735
Deposits, cash and bank balances - - 420,405 420,405
Total 106,582 28,153 1,305,985 1,440,720
Other
financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
RM000
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Borrowings 1,160,326
Trade and other payables 940,301
Amount due to related parties 25,879
Amount due to subsidiaries 1,488
Total 2,127,984
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial instruments by category (continued)
Loan and
Company receivables
RM'000
31 December 2015
Assets as per balance sheet
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments and deposits 191,580
Other deposits excluding prepayments 472,459
Amount due from related parties 29,330
Amount due from a joint venture 55,570
Amount due from a subsidiary 26,150
Deposits, cash and bank balances 310,274
Total 1,085,373
Liabilities Other
at fair value financial
through Derivatives liabilities at
the profit used for amortised
and loss hedging cost Total
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Liabilifies as per balance sheet
Borrowings - - 1,429,087 1,429,087
Trade and other payables - - 879,116 879,116
Amount due to related parties - - 45,668 45,668
Amount due to subsidiaries - - 2,263 2,263
Derivative financial instruments 7,585 107,630 - 115,215
Total 7,585 107,630 2,356,134 2,471,349
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)
{b) Credit quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed

by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about
counterparty default rates: )

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Counterparties without external
credit rating
Group 1 131 9,090 131 9,080
Group 2 13,853 73.876 14,254 73,876
Total trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired 13,984 82,966 14,385 82,966
Group Company
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Deposits, cash and
bank balances
AAA to A- 411,802 286,561 410,186 286,046
BBB to BBB- 9,755 23,861 9,755 23,861
421,557 310,422 419,941 308,907
Cash in hand 464 367 464 367
Total 23 422,021 310,782 420,405 310,274
Amounts due from related
parties, a joint venture, a
subsidiary and an associate
Group 1 - 4,985 - 4,865
Group 2 20,126 39,587 20,126 38,814
Total 22 20,126 44 552 20,126 43,779

Group 1 — New customers/related parties (Less than 6 months)

Group 2—- Existing customers/related parties (more than 6 months) with no defaults in the
past. '

All other receivables and deposits are substantially with existing counterparties with no

history of defautlt.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on reports that are reviewed and used
to make strategic decisions by the Group’s Chief Executive Officer (“GEQ") who is identified as the
chief operating decision maker.

The Group's CEQ considers the business from a geographic perspective. With the termination of
certain routes in the previous financial year, the operating segments have been reassessed and
identified as North Asia, Australia and Middle East and West Asia.

The operating segments derive their revenues primarily from the Group’s activities of provision of long
haul air fransportation services to these locations.

Consistent with information provided to the chief operating decision maker, revenue and certain direct
costs (fuel, oil and maintenance, overhaul and user charges) were exiracted on actual earned/incurred
basis and disclosed accordingly in the operating segment resulis for the financial years ended 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015 respectively. All other costs are allocated to the various
segments based on “block hours”. Block hours are defined as the time between the departure of an
aircraft and its arrival at its destination, as recorded in the aircraft flight log.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —~ 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION {(CONTINUED})

The Group's operations by gecgraphical segments are as follows:

West Asia
and
2016 North Asia Australia Middle East Total
RM'000 BM'000 RM'000 RM'000
External revenue
- Scheduled flights 1,426,708 888,479 217,356 2,532,543
- Charter flights 2,658 - 252,062 254,720
- Freight services 58,832 55,489 20,582 134,913
- Ancillary revenue 318,760 246,849 77,106 842,715
- Management fees 830 604 75 1,509
- Aircraft operating lease income 242,074 176,642 21,418 440,134
2,049,862 1,368,083 588,609 4,008,534
Operating expenses
- Staif costs (172,633) (138,555) (58,406) (369,594)
- Aircraft fuel expenses (568,737) {419,067) (128,306) (1,116,110)
- Maintenance and overhaul {305,749) {222,537) {91,045) (619,331)
- User charges (232,594) {169,635) {59,456) (461,685)
- Aircraft operating lease expenses (417,651) {305,220) (123,133) (846,004)
- Other operating expenses {131,461) (97,799) (22,076) (251,336)
- Other income 31,089 21,830 3,081 56,000
Gross profit 252,126 37,080 109,268 398,474
EBITDAR 669,777 342,300 232,401 1,244,478 |
EBITDA 252,126 37,080 109,268 398,474
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (55,972) {40,872) (16,687) (113,531)
EBIT 196,154 (3,792) 92,581 284,943
Finance income 12,389 8,919 3,467 24,775
Finance costs (24,337) (17,516) (8,021) {49,874)
Foreign exchange losses (18,121) (13,347} {4,021) {35,489)
Other gains 17,067 12,603 6,068 35,738
Profit before tax 183,152 (13,133) 90,074 260,093
Taxation (35,424) 3,237 (17,592) (49,779)
Net profit for the financial year 147,728 (9,896) 72,482 210,314
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group's operations by geographical segments are as follows: {continued)

West Asia
Auf“"{; M:;a’ and
2015 North Asia Australia Middle East Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
External revenue
- Scheduled flights 982,539 571,227 128,974 1,682,740
- Charter flights - - 421,662 421,662
- Fuel surcharge 42,955 55,144 762 98,861
- Freight and cargo 49,747 29,914 27,847 107,508
- Anciilary revenue 244,771 177,413 54,223 476,407
- Management fees 690 410 261 1,361
- Aircraft operating lease income 162,759 95,526 15,729 274,014
1,483,461 929,634 649,458 3,062,553
Operating expenses
- Staff costs (160,254) (95,082) (60,505) (315,821)
- Aircraft fuel expenses (518,014) (307,285) (195,582) (1,020,881)
- Maintenance, overhaul and user
charges and other related expenses  (452,549) (268,451) {170,865) {891,865)
- Aircraft operating lease expenses (358,267) (212,523) (135,268) {706,058)
- Other operating costs (69,742) (41,371) (26,332) (137,445)
- Qther income 59,308 35,181 22,392 116,881
Gross (loss)/profit {16,057) 40,123 83,208 107,364
EBITDAR 342,210 252,646 218,568 813,422 |
EBITDA {16,057) 40,123 83,298 107,364
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment {73,478) (43,587) (27,742) (144,807)
EBIT (89,535) (3,464) 55,556 (37.,443)
Interest income 10,053 5,963 3,796 19,812
Interest expense and finance charges (42,680) (25,323) (16,118) (84,131)
Foreign exchange loss {152,003) (90,168) (57,391) (299,562)
Share of results of a joint venture (19,082) (11,307) {7,197) (37,5686)
Other losses (3,849) (2,283) (1,453) (7,585)
Loss before fax {(297,086) {126,582) {22,807) (446,475)
Taxation 49,148 29,154 18,556 96,859
Net loss for the financtal year (247,938) (97,428) {(4,251) (349,618)

100



33

34

Company No.
734161 | K

AIRASIA X BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Note:

EBITDAR - Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortisation and restructuring or rent

costs
EBITDA - Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amoriisation
EBIT - Earnings before interest and taxes

All material non-current assets are based in Malaysia at the end of the current and previous financial
year end.

The Group has not disclosed information relating to revenue from external customers which are
attributed to the country of domicile and which are attributable to all foreign countries in total from
which the Group derives revenue. Due to the nature of activities in the Group, the necessary
information is not available and the cost to develop it would be excessive.

UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Company has set up Merah X entities, special purpose companies {"SPC”) pursuant to aircraft
related borrowings obtained from various financial institutions. Under the arrangement, the Company
enters into an Aircraft Instalment Sale Agreement with the SPC, permitting the company io possess
and operate each of the Airbus A330-300 aircraft financed under the facility.

The SPC are orphan trust companies in which the Company has no equity interest.

The details of the Merah X entities are as follows:

Country of
Name incorporation Purpose
Merah X Dua Limited Malaysia Purchase of 3 Airbus A330-300 aircraft
Merah X Tiga Limited Malaysia Purchase of 2 Airbus A330-343 aircraft
Merah X Enam Limited Malaysia . Purchase of 2 Airbus A330-300 aircraft

The SPC do not incur any losses or eam any income during the financial year ended 31 December
2016. The aircraft and the corresponding term loans and finance costs associated with the SPC have
been recognised by the Group and Company upon the purchase of the aircraft.

The Group and the Company does not provide any financial support to the SPC or have any
contractual obligation o make good the losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVES

For the financial year ended 31 December 20186, the presentation of ‘maintenance, overhaul, user
charges and other related expenses’ was changed to ‘maintenance and overhaul’ and ‘user charges’
to better reflect the operating performance of the Group.

Comparatives have been re-presented to align with the current financial year's presentation.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO BURSA
MALAYSIA SECURITIES LISTING REQUIREMENT

The following analysis of realised and unrealised retained profits is prepared in accordance with the
Guidance on Special Matter No.1 — Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the
Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued
by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. This disclosure is based on the format prescribed by Bursa

Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Total accumulated losses of AirAsia X Berhad
and its subsidiaries:

- Realised
- Unrealised

Total share of accumulated losses
from associated company:

- Realised

Total share of accumulated losses

from joint venture:
- Realised

Total accumulated losses as per
consolidated financial statements

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
(720,745) (959,339) (777,324) (1,016,048)

145,936 174,216 145,936 174,216
(574,809) (785,123) {631,388) (841,832)

{20,018) (20,018) - -

(53,888) {53,888) - -
(648,715) (859,029) (631,388) (841,832)

The disclosure of realised and unrealised losses above is solely for compliance with the directive
issued by the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and should not be applied for any other purposes.
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STATE'MENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 251 (2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2016

We, Tan Sri Rafidah Aziz and Datuk Kamarudin Bin Meranun, being two of the Directors of AirAsia
X Berhad, state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 6 to
102 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2016 and financial perfermance of the Group and of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act,
2018 in Malaysia.

The supplementary information set out on page 103 have been prepared in accordance with the
Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the
Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued
by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 28
March 2017.

DATUK KAMARUDIN BIN MERANUN
DIRECTOR

STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 251(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2016

I, Cheok Huei Shian, the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of AirAsia X
Berhad, do solemn[y and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 6 to 102
are, in my opinion, correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to
be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960. o

- .

CHEOK HUEI SHIAN

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS

16TH FLOOR, WEMA SIME DARBY
JALAN RAJA LAUT, 50350 KUALA LUMPUR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AIRASIA X BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 734161-X)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QOur opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of AirAsia X Berhad (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2016, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

What we have audited

‘We have audited the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, which comprise the balance
sheets as at 31 December 2016 of the Group and of the Company, and the income statements, statements
of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group
and of the Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 6 to 102.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
OUr opinion.

Independence and other ethical responsibilities

‘We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional
Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“IESBA Code”™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws
and the IESBA Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (AF 1146), Chartered Accountants,
Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan Rakyat, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwe.com/my
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AIRASIA X BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No, 734161 K)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Qur audit approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements of the Group and the Company. In particular, we considered
where the directors made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently
uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls,
including among other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a
risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

‘We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and of the
Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group and the Company
operate.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

How our audit addressed the key audit
matters

Key audit matters

Revenue recognition from scheduled
flights

Refer to Note 4 to the financial statements of
the Group and Company for revenue and
balance sheets for sales in advance.

Revenue from the Group and Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016 were
primarily derived from scheduled flights.
Passengers pay for their flights in advance and
the amounts paid are recognised as ‘sales in
advance’ on the balance sheets. The amounts
are subsequently recognised as revenue when
the flight has flown.

The flight reservation system is managed by a third
party vendor in Australia. We tested the information
technology general controls over the {flight
reservation system. Where information technology
general controls over this system are managed by the
vendor, these controls were tested by the vendor’s
external auditors. We obtained and evaluated the
external auditors’ report on the operating
effectiveness of those conirols. We tested the
relevant controls over approval for changes in base
fares and ancillary fares and approval for fare
override in the flight reservation system.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AJRASIA X BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
{(Company No. 734161 K)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters {continued)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit
matters

Revenue recognition from scheduled
flights (continued)

Accuracy of revenue recognised in the income
statements is dependent on the fares paid by
passengers, foreign exchange rates at the
flight booking date to translate foreign
currency transactions and changes to flights
(flown, unflown or cancelled) recorded in the
flight reservation system. The Company uses
an integrated revenue accounting system
which interfaces with the flight reservation
system to generate journal entries to be
posted into the general ledger. There is a high
dependency on the flight reservation and
revenue accounting systems for revenue
recognition. The Company also uses a
reconciliation system to reconcile flight
booking data in the flight reservation system
with payment data from financial institutions
and online payment gateways. The
reconciliation system generates exception
report showing flight booking data that are
not matched to payment data.

Revenue from scheduled flights is a key audit
matter due to the magnitude of the revenue
and sales in advance balance, significant
volume of transactions and the significant
audit effort spent on this area.

We also tested the information technology general
controls over the reconciliation system and the
payment gateway system. We tested reliability of
the exception reports generated by the
reconciliation system by tracing samples of
exceptions to the flight booking data and payment
data. We also tested how management reviews
these reports and resolves the exceptions via
inquiries with management and tracing samples of
exception items to supporting documents.

We tested the sales in advance and revenue
recognised by performing the following procedures:
a) Agreed samples of flight bookings of which
cash has been received from passengers, to the
external payment reports from financial
institutions and online payment gateways;
Tested the foreign currency translation for
samples of flight bookings made in foreign
currencies;

Agreed the revenue recognised during the
financial year to each monthly journals
generated by the revenue accounting system
and posted by management;

Agreed samples of revenue transactions to
flight manifests of flown flights and to a third
party flight tracking website; and

Tested completeness of revenue and sales in
advance by tracing samples of travel
itineraries for flights during the year and
flights subsequent to year end to revenue
transactions and sales in advance balances
respectively.

b)

c)

d)

e)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AIRASIA X BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 734161 K)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters (continued}

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit
matters

Aircraft maintenance provision

The Company operates aircraft which are
owned or held under operating lease
arrangement. For aircraft under operating
lease, the Company is contractually
committed to return the aircraft at the end of
the lease term in a certain condition agreed
with lessors. The lease agreements require
the Company to pay deposits for
maintenance of leased aircraft to the lessors.
The Company also entered into an agreement
with a maintenance service provider and
prepays the cost of aircraft maintenance.
Following this, management has estimated
the aircraft maintenance provision at the end
of each reporting period based on payments
made to both service provider and the
lessors.

As at 31 December 2016, the aircraft
maintenance  provision of Company
amounted to RM592 million. The provision is
included within trade and other payables in
the consolidated balance sheet (refer to Note
25 to the financial statements).

We have identified aircraft maintenance
provision as a key audit matter because of the
magnitude of the provision and significant
audit effort spent on this area.

Given that the provision is estimated based on
payments to the maintenance service provider and

lessors, we have performed the {following
procedures:
a) Reviewed the lease agreements to confirm the

Company's coniractual obligation on the
aircraft maintenance and payment of deposits
to lessors;

b} Traced all deposits and prepayments for
aircraft maintenance during the year to
invoices issued by lessors and maintenance
service provider respectively; and

c) Compared the provision estimated by

management against the prepayments and
deposits for aircraft maintenance at year end.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AIRASIA X BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 734161 K)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises Directors’ Report and Statement on Risk Management & Internal Control, which we obtained
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Chairman’s
Statement, Statement on Corporate Governance, Audit Committee Report, Sustainability Report and
other sections of the 2016 Annual Report, which are expected to be made available to us after that date.
Other information does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of
the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AIRASIA X BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 734161 K)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve] of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in
Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Anditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s internal conirol.

(© Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

(D Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financjal statements of
the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

(e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ATRASIA X BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 734161 K)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the
Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
‘We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reascnably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the
following;:

(a) In our opinion, the accountmg and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept
by the Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept
in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

®) ‘We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, which are indicated in Note 16 to the financial statements.

(c) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated
with the Company’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for
the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received
satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

(d) The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any
qualification or any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.
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OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

The supplementary information set out in page 103 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible for
the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No.
1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion,
the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA
Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of

the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS NG GAN HOOI
(No. AF: 1146) (No. 2914/04/17 (1)
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
28 March 2017
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